1951

W. B. Russell v. The Ogden Union Railway and Depot Company : Brief of Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF FACTS

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

The parties will be referred to as in the court below.
The italics are ours.

In making up the record on appeal the Clerk of the District Court used a stamp on the judgment roll numbering the pages from 1 to 73, inclusive, but did not number the reporter's transcript of the proceedings had at the trial

and the transcript bears the reporter's numbers, pages 1 to 54, inclusive. We will therefore refer to the reporter's transcript of the proceedings had at the trial as (Tr. —) and other portions of the record as (R. —).

This case was tried before the Hon. Charles G. Cowley, Judge of the District Court of Weber County, sitting without a jury, and resulted in a money judgment in favor of the plaintiff and against the defendant in the sum of \$18,892.76, together with costs of suit.

The pleadings in this case appear voluminous owing to the fact that a number of appearances were made before the court prior to trial, which involved hearings on demurrers, various motions, applications for amendment, etc. by both plaintiff and defendant. The issues, however, at the time of the trial were quite simple and in order to be of as much assistance to the court as possible we will endeavor to keep this statement of facts confined to those matters relating to the issues litigated by the parties at the trial and which are pertinent to this appeal. The plaintiff presented the entire facts of his case to the court in a few minutes, owing largely to stipulations entered into and admissions made by the defendant. Plaintiff did not testify and he called no witnesses. Therefore, in the first place, we think we should set forth those facts which were either admitted in the pleadings or stipulated to by the parties at the trial.

The corporate existence of the defendant was admitted and it was admitted that the plaintiff on August 3, 1945 was, and had since August 18, 1941, been employed by the defendant as a switchman at its terminal yards at Ogden, Utah; that there had been in existence since October 1, 1942,

and during all the time of plaintiff's employment, a collective bargaining agreement between the defendant carrier and the Brotherhood of Railroad Trainmen covering wages, working conditions, procedure for discipline, and all such other details usually covered in agreements of this type. The agreement covered all "yardmen" employed by the defendant within the limits of the yards at Ogden, and the defendant admitted and now admits that whatever the duties of employees were, who were classified as yardmen working within the Ogden Yard, they were entitled to all the benefits of this contract (Plaintiff's Ex. "E"), whether they belonged to the Brotherhood of Railroad Trainmen, The Switchmen's Union of North America, some other union, or were members of no union at all. It was undisputed that the plaintiff was a member of the Switchman's Union of North America, performed all of his duties within the limits of the Ogden Yard, was classified as a yardman within the contemplation of the agreement referred to, entitled to the benefits thereof, and subject to its burdens.

On August 3, 1945, pursuant to notice, the plaintiff appeared, with the Local Chairman of the Switchmen's Union of North America as his representative, before the Assistant Superintendent of the defendant company to answer a charge of violating the terms of the collective bargaining agreement governing his employment; specifically, for having been absent from duty for a period in excess of ten days without having secured and filled out "Form 153" as provided for in Article XIII, Section 55(b), of the collective bargaining agreement (Plaintiff's Exhibit "E"). The testimony was stenographically reported (Plaintiff's Ex.

"A"), and as the examiner found that the plaintiff was guilty of the charge, the plaintiff was dismissed from the service of the defendant company on August 4, 1945. No issue was made and no evidence was offered at the trial by the plaintiff in support of any claim that the defendant company had failed to follow the agreement in giving the plaintiff proper notice of the time and place of hearing, opportunity to prepare any defense he cared to, or that he was denied the right to a representative of his own choosing, or full opportunity to be heard in person or to have witnesses to testify in his behalf, or to present any other evidence he desired. The only claim plaintiff made at the trial in support of his alleged right to recover was that he was not given a "fair and impartial hearing" and was dismissed without "just cause," and that the defendant therefore was guilty of a breach of the collective bargaining agreement in dismissing him from service.

The plaintiff in his complaint demanded that the court award him damages for "all time lost," asking pay for every single day, that is, 365 days a year, from the date of plaintiff's discharge August 4, 1945, to the date of trial September 7, 1950 (Complaint R. 4; Amendment to Complaint R. 43). He also asked the court to order the defendant to reinstate him in his former employment without any impairment of his seniority rights. The trial court, it appears, decided the case entirely upon the written transcript of the hearing before the defendant's Assistant Superintendent, and on that alone, and entered judgment for the full amount prayed for, \$18,892.76, but did not direct the defendant to reinstate plaintiff in his employment.

The defendant in its answer (R. 5) and in its amendment to its answer (R. 14), denied that it had dismissed the plaintiff without sufficient cause and justification and denied the charge that the plaintiff's conduct failed to show a violation of the collective bargaining agreement under which he was employed and alleged affirmatively that the conduct of the plaintiff was in violation of said agreement and that the dismissal was justified. The court admitted the transcript of the investigation, considered it as substantive evidence and conclusive, although the witnesses are not sworn at such investigations, and refused to hear any evidence offered by defendant to show it was justified in dismissing the plaintiff.

The defendant also denied that the plaintiff had been damaged in any sum by reason of the matters charged in the complaint and in addition thereto set forth the following affirmative matters:

FIRST: That any damages plaintiff might have suffered could have been mitigated by the plaintiff and averted or avoided, in whole or in part, by plaintiff securing remunerative employment after his dismissal, other than employment by the defendant (R. 6).

SECOND: That the plaintiff was not entitled to reinstatement or to recover damages for the reason that he had not, following his dismissal, complied with Article VIII, Rule 38, of the agreement covering the procedure upon application for reinstatement (the detail of which will be covered hereinafter), and that the defendant was powerless to reinstate the plaintiff at any time after his dismissal without violating the agreement as to all of its other employees (R. 14).

THIRD: That the plaintiff failed to object to his dismissal until the 14th day of January, 1946, and that therefore, in any event, he would not be entitled to recover any lost time or damages between the date of his dismissal and the 24th day of January, 1946, account Article VIII, Rule 38, of the agreement providing that objection to dismissal must be filed "not later than thirty days from the date of dismissal; otherwise, pay for lost time will commence ten days after date of letter of objection." (R. 15, and the agreement, Plaintiff's Ex. "A".) (The court respected this provision of the contract and did not give plaintiff "lost time" for this period, so it is not discussed hereafter.)

FOURTH: The defendant pleaded that the plaintiff had, through a representative of the Switchmen's Union of North America, whom he had appointed as his representative to handle his grievance with the defendant, confessed that his testimony given at the hearing was false, advised the defendant that his claim was withdrawn and advised the defendant that it might consider the case "closed," and that the defendant company ever since receiving such advice on May 14, 1946 had treated the matter as closed and terminated and that by reason thereof plaintiff had no rights under said agreement, or otherwise, which he could assert against the defendant company for back wages or reinstatement, and if any such right ever did exist plaintiff was estopped to assert the same (R. 15, 16).

The plaintiff's case having been presented to the court almost entirely on defendant's admissions in the pleadings and stipulations entered into at the trial, we do not anticipate that counsel for the plaintiff can take any serious exception to our statement thus far.

In connection with the first affirmative defense the undisputed evidence was that the plaintiff earned between the date of his dismissal and the date of trial in outside employment the sum of \$7,774.39. The trial court refused to take this into consideration in mitigation of damages.

With respect to the second affirmative defense, Article VIII, Rule 38, of the agreement under which plaintiff was employed (Plaintiff's Ex. "E") provides in part as follows:

"In case dismissal is found to be unjust, yardmen shall be reinstated and paid for all time lost, provided, objection has been filed with the Superintendent in writing not later than thirty days from date of dismissal, otherwise, pay for time lost will commence ten days after date of letter of objection.

"Reinstatement will not be permitted after the expiration of six months from date of dismissal, unless agreeable to the management *and* the general committee, except that a case pending with either the BRT or ORC at the expiration of the six-month period will not be prejudiced. Where the yardman involved has been out of service six months or less it will not be obligatory to consult the committees representing these classes of employes in considering the case for reinstatement."

The plaintiff did nothing about seeking reconsideration or reinstatement until the lapse of nearly five and a half months, at which time, that is, January 14, 1946, J. B. Hudgens, Local Chairman of the Switchmen's Union of North America, wrote to Mr. R. E. Edens, defendant's Superintendent at Ogden, asking him to reconsider the decision and reinstate Mr. Russell in his employment (Plaintiff's Ex. "B"). On January 22, 1946, Mr. R. E. Edens,

the Superintendent, advised Mr. Hudgens that this application for reinstatement of Russell was denied. The Switchmen's Union of North America was authorized in writing by Mr. W. B. Russell to represent him and attached to Mr. Hudgen's letter to Mr. Edens is such written authorization, which at the trial was not disputed (Tr. 4). At the expiration of the six-month period following dismissal there was nothing pending with either the BRT or ORC and the defendant in connection with this case.

Mr. H. C. Beckett, who was and for 15 years had been, the Local Chairman of the Brotherhood of Railroad Trainmen in the Ogden Yards, testified that the BRT was the sole and exclusive bargaining agent for the yardmen in the Ogden Yards (Tr. 44, 45); that Mr. Russell, in person or by or through anyone else, never at any time requested or solicited the BRT in the Ogden Yards to petition for his reinstatement. Mr. Edens testified that he never at any time following the dismissal received an application or petition from either the Brotherhood of Railroad Trainmen or the Order of Railroad Conductors during the six-month period or thereafter for reinstatement or reconsideration of the plaintiff's dismissal (Tr. 41, 42).

We then sought to prove that the Brotherhood of Railroad Trainmen had never been, at any time, agreeable to the reinstatement of Mr. Russell, and although Mr. Beckett so testified, his answers were stricken (Tr. 46). As there was not pending from the Brotherhood of Railroad Trainmen or the ORC (Mr. Edens' testimony Tr. 41, 42), or from anyone else an application for reinstatement at the expiration of the six-month period following dismissal, it

was necessary to show that it was not agreeable to the "General Committee" of the BofRT to reinstate the plaintiff. Two things were necessary to support this affirmative defense, first, that at the expiration of the six-month period following dismissal there was no application for reinstatement of the plaintiff pending with the management from either the BofRT or the ORC; and second, to show that the General Committee was never agreeable at any time after the six-month period had expired to the plaintiff's reinstatement. The court permitted us to prove through Mr. Edens' testimony referred to above and appearing at Tr. 41, 42, that at no time did the Brotherhood of Railroad Trainmen or the ORC have pending with the management an application for reinstatement of the plaintiff, but refused to permit us to prove that the "General Committee" was unwilling to consent to the plaintiff's reinstatement after the six-month period from date of dismissal had expired. We were prepared to show that the "General Committee" as used in the agreement meant the General Committee of the Brotherhood of Railroad Trainmen, and that the ORC was not involved or required to give its consent after the expiration of six months to reinstatement, but in view of the fact that the testimony of Mr. Beckett, the Local Chairman of the BofRT, that the BofRT was not agreeable to the reinstatement (Tr. 46) was promptly stricken, we think we were justified in not offending against the court's ruling by pursuing the matter further. With no application for reinstatement pending from either the BofRT or ORC, and the BofRT being unwilling to consent to reinstatement after the six-month period, the defendant, had it so desired, could not have reinstated the

plaintiff without breaching the agreement with every employe in the Ogden Yard who would be set down one place on the seniority roster because of plaintiff's reinstatement. We apologize for interjecting in this "statement of facts" the foregoing explanatory matter, but it seemed necessary in order to establish the significance of this affirmative defense.

With respect to the third affirmative defense, the court respected the contract and did not allow "lost time" as damages between the date of dismissal and ten days after receipt of plaintiff's application for reinstatement.

With respect to the fourth affirmative defense, the defendant introduced a letter from Mr. C. E. McDaniels, Acting Vice President of the Switchmen's Union of North America, dated February 15, 1946, addressed to Mr. F. C. Paulsen, Vice President of the defendant company (Plaintiff's Ex. "D"), to which was attached the written authorization of the plaintiff authorizing the Switchmen's Union of North America to represent him, and in which reconsideration and reinstatement was requested by the plaintiff.

Defendant also introduced a letter written by Mr. McDaniels May 14, 1946 to Mr. F. C. Paulsen (Defendant's Ex. "3"), in which he refers to an agreement reached between himself and Mr. Paulsen wherein he undertook to investigate "undesirable procedure on the part of Mr. Russell resulting in false testimony evidenced during formal investigation of August 3, 1945." He then states in the last paragraph of his letter that their investigation of the

alleged false testimony of Mr. Russell has been completed and that, and we quote, "we are withdrawing the grievance and the case is closed."

Mr. R. E. Edens, Superintendent of the defendant company, was sworn and testified that Mr. McDaniels' last letter (defendant's Ex. "3") was given to him by Mr. Paulsen, to whom it was addressed, and that ever since said date the defendant company had considered the matter a closed issue (Tr. 42, 43).

The original fully executed contract between the defendant and BofRT was introduced in evidence and it was stipulated that plaintiff's Exhibit "E", a true copy, might be substituted therefor (Tr. 44).

STATEMENT OF POINTS

POINT I.

THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN ADMITTING THE TRANSCRIPT OF THE PROCEEDINGS AT THE OFFICIAL INVESTIGATION AS SUBSTANTIVE EVIDENCE OF THE FACTS THEREIN STATED.

POINT II.

THE TRIAL COURT COMMITTED REVERSIBLE ERROR IN REFUSING TO GRANT THE DEFENDANT'S MOTION FOR A JUDGMENT OF NONSUIT.

POINT III.

THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN LIMITING THE EVIDENCE ON THE QUESTION OF WHETHER OR NOT DEFENDANT HAD BREACHED THE COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT SOLELY. UPON THE TRANSCRIPT OF THE UNSWORN TESTIMONY GIVEN AT THE OFFICIAL INVESTIGATION; IN REFUSING TO ADMIT EVIDENCE PROFFERED BY THE DEFENDANT TO SHOW JUSTIFICATION FOR PLAINTIFF'S DISMISSAL; AND IN REFUSING TO PERMIT THE DEFENDANT TO PROVE THAT PLAINTIFF'S TESTIMONY CONTAINED IN SAID TRANSCRIPT WAS FALSE.

POINT IV.

THE TRIAL COURT COMMITTED REVERSIBLE ERROR IN ASSESSING AND FIXING DAMAGES:

(a) IN REFUSING TO ALLOW AS MITIGATION OF DAMAGES THE AMOUNT OF MONEY EARNED BY THE PLAINTIFF IN OTHER EMPLOYMENT BETWEEN THE DATE OF HIS DISMISSAL BY THE DEFENDANT AND THE DATE OF TRIAL;

(b) IN HOLDING THAT THE MEASURE OF DAMAGES FOR BREACH OF THE CONTRACT WAS THE AMOUNT PLAINTIFF

WOULD HAVE EARNED HAD HE WORKED EACH AND EVERY DAY AT HIS FORMER EMPLOYMENT WITH THE DEFENDANT BETWEEN THE RECEIPT BY DEFENDANT OF HIS APPLICATION FOR REINSTATEMENT AND THE DAY OF TRIAL, SEPTEMBER 7, 1950, A PERIOD IN EXCESS OF FIVE YEARS;

(c) IN REFUSING TO PERMIT THE DEFENDANT TO PROVE THAT THE PLAINTIFF DURING HIS EMPLOYMENT BY THE DEFENDANT WORKED ONLY A PORTION OF THE TIME ALTHOUGH STEADY EMPLOYMENT WAS AVAILABLE TO HIM.

POINT V.

THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN REFUSING TO ALLOW THE DEFENDANT TO PROVE THAT IT WAS POWERLESS TO REINSTATE THE PLAINTIFF IN HIS EMPLOYMENT AFTER THE EXPIRATION OF SIX MONTHS FROM THE DATE OF DISMISSAL WITHOUT THE CONSENT OF THE BROTHERHOOD OF RAILROAD TRAINMEN, AND IN EXCLUDING DEFENDANT'S PROFFER OF EVIDENCE TO SHOW THAT THE BROTHERHOOD OF RAILROAD TRAINMEN WAS NEVER AT ANY TIME WILLING TO CONSENT TO PLAINTIFF'S REINSTATEMENT BY THE DEFENDANT.

POINT VI.

THE TRIAL COURT COMMITTED REVERSIBLE ERROR WHEN IT FAILED TO FIND THAT THE PLAINTIFF WAS WITHOUT ANY RIGHT TO MAINTAIN AN ACTION FOR DAMAGES FOR BREACH OF THE CONTRACT, OR IF SUCH RIGHT AT ANY TIME DID EXIST, IN FAILING TO FIND THAT PLAINTIFF WAS FORECLOSED AND ESTOPPED FROM ASSERTING THE SAME.

POINT VII.

THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN ENTERING FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW WHOLLY UNSUPPORTED BY COMPETENT EVIDENCE IN THE CASE, AND IN ENTERING ITS JUDGMENT UPON SUCH FINDINGS AND CONCLUSIONS.

ARGUMENT

POINT I.

THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN ADMITTING THE TRANSCRIPT OF THE PROCEEDINGS AT THE OFFICIAL INVESTIGATION AS SUBSTANTIVE EVIDENCE OF THE FACTS THEREIN STATED.

We think it might be helpful if at the very outset we set forth just what the nature of this proceeding was in the court below.

This case is a common-law action for breach of contract and nothing else. The trial court had the right to

determine whether or not the collective bargaining agreement between the carrier and its employe, the plaintiff, had been breached and to apply ordinary common-law principles of the law of damages in assessing damages, if it found that the defendant carrier had breached the contract. That was the full extent of the trial court's power to act in a proceeding of this kind, and it was wholly without jurisdiction to decide anything else. *Slocum v. Delaware, Lackawana & Western Railroad*, 339 U. S. 239, 94 L. Ed. 534, 70 S. Ct. 577, decided by the Supreme Court of the United States April 10, 1950. *Order of Railway Conductors v. Southern Railway Company*, 339 U. S. 255, 94 L. Ed. 542, 70 S. Ct. 585, also decided by the Supreme Court of the United States April 10, 1950. *Order of Railway Conductors v. Pitney*, 326 U. S. 561, 90 L. Ed. 318, 66 S. Ct. 322.

We think it is generally conceded that following the decision of the United States Supreme Court in *Moore v. Illinois Central R. Co.*, 312 U. S. 630, 85 L. Ed. 1089, 61 S. Ct. 754, the bar, and bench both state and federal, considered that an employe of a carrier had an election to pursue his remedy for an alleged breach of a railway collective bargaining agreement either before the administrative body set up by the Railway Labor Act, that is, the National Railroad Adjustment Board, or to take his grievance into the courts, either state or federal. Whether such generally held opinion was justified or not is really immaterial to this discussion because the Supreme Court of the United States in the *Slocum* case, *supra*, definitely held that the jurisdiction of the Railroad Adjustment Board to adjust grievances and disputes of all kinds arising out of collective bargaining agreements in the railroad industry, is

exclusive; that no court, either state or federal, has a right to usurp the exclusive powers of the Railroad Adjustment Board, the congressionally designated agency, to determine *any* question involving the interpretation of such agreements. The case holds that no court, state or federal, has the power to order reinstatement by a carrier of any employe. The decision does, however, countenance maintaining in a court a suit by an employe for damages for breach of a collective bargaining agreement. This decision instantly drew the attention of the entire railroad industry and has become a landmark.

Mr. Justice Black, who delivered the opinion of the court, stated as follows:

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