1951

W. B. Russell v. The Ogden Union Railway and Depot Company : Brief of Respondent

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF FACTS

As the facts before the lower court were, for the most part, admitted by the pleadings, or stipulated, there is no dispute with respect thereto. As this factual situation may be briefly developed, we take the liberty of so doing, realizing that to some extent it is repetitious of appellant's statement. We refer to the parties as they appeared in the lower court, namely, as plaintiff and defendant.

On August 3, 1945, plaintiff was employed as a switchman by defendant at its yards in Ogden. He had there been so employed for approximately four years. His employment was covered by a collective bargaining agreement entered into between defendant and the Brotherhood of Railway Trainmen, and he was entitled to the benefits and subject to the burdens thereof. This

collective bargaining agreement is in evidence as Plaintiff's Exhibit "E". Plaintiff did not return to work following the completion of his work day on July 21, 1946. On July 31 or August 1, 1945, (there being a conflict between the pleadings and the evidence) at approximately 6:30 o'clock in the morning, defendant called plaintiff by telephone and told him that a formal investigation would be held by defendant that day at 2:00 o'clock p. m. concerning his violation of the collective bargaining agreement by being absent without leave for a period of over ten days. At plaintiff's request the time of the investigation and hearing was continued and on August 2, 1945, plaintiff was notified by defendant to appear on August 3, 1945, at 9:00 A. M. for hearing upon such charge.

On August 3, 1945, the hearing was held in the offices of the defendant company, and conducted by Mr. H. Caulk, defendant's Assistant Superintendent. The complete hearing was reported by Mr. Caulk's clerk, and transcribed. The only witness called at such hearing was plaintiff and his statement was made primarily pursuant to questions propounded by Mr. Caulk. The transcript of the hearing was received in evidence in this cause as Plaintiff's Exhibit "A". As it is relatively short, and as it is of importance to at least some phases of this appeal, we set it out in full.

"Transcript of formal investigation conducted in office of Assistant Superintendent OUR&D Co. 9 AM August 3, 1945, in connection with Switchman W. B. Russell being absent from duty over 10 days without leave of absence in violation of B.R.T. Schedule Rule 55 B.

Officers Present:

H. Caulk, Ass't Supt. OUR&D Co. Conducting

Employees Interrogated:

W. B. Ruseell, Switchman, OUR&D Co.

Representatives of Employes:

J. B. Hudgens, Representing W. B. Russell

Reported by:

J. E. O. Burton, Clerk to Ass't Supt,
OUR&D Co.

Questions by: Mr. Caulk:

Statements of W. B. Russell:

Q Mr. Russell this in an investigation relative you being absent from duty over 10 days without leave of absence in violation of BRT Rule 55 B. Do you wish a representative.

A Yes sir, Mr. Hudgens.

Q State your name, occupation and home address.

A W. B. Russell, Switchman, 933 Ogden Canyon.

Q How long have you been employed by the OUR&D Co.

A August 28 will be 4 years.

Q Do you know the rule that you will not absent yourself from duty 10 days or over without written leave.

A Yes sir.

Q Why didn't you obtain written leave.

A Because I was sick in bed at the time.

Q Why didn't you ask the office for leave of absence.

- A I called just as soon as I got out of bed, soon as they called me and told me I was over it.
- Q What other business are you engaged in that you cannot work for the Depot Co.
- A None of my own.
- Q Are you working any place else.
- A No.
- Q I understand you own a Club up the canyon.
- A No.
- Q You work up there don't you.
- A Yes. No.
- Q Do you know how many days you have worked this year.
- A Yes I do.
- Q It hasn't been very many has it.
- A No, I have had more sickness than I have ever had in my life, you can go back on my record and see. I had measles, was scalded and now down with a cold.
- Q You state you have been here four years.
- A Four years August 28th.
- Q And you have never asked for leave at any time layed off.
- A Never went over 10 days except when scalded.
- Q You have made it your business to work some time in each half.
- A Yes.
- Q The fact of matter is you worked as follows during this year.

1st half January, 8 days
2nd half January, 8 days
1st half February 7 days
2nd half February 6 days
1st half March 6 days
2nd half March 6 days
1st half April 2 days
2nd half April 6 days
1st half May 4 days
2nd half May 6 days
1st half June 1 day
2nd half June 2 days
1st half July off 11 days injured and worked
only two days in second half of July since
you were injured.

A That is when I layed off sick, I got scalded
went to work and layed off sick.

Q That doesn't relieve you, you could tell us
you were sick at that time and told them had
to have leave of absence and could have gotten
leave at that time.

A I didn't figure I would be off that much time,
just had cold when layed off, I have been to
a doctor.

Q You haven't worked since have you.

A No I haven't. I had had more trouble with
sickness than any time since I have been down
here.

Questions by Mr. Hudgens:

Q While you were sick during this last period of
time were you attended by Co. doctor.

A Yes, Dr. Stratford.

Q And you talked to train desk before the expiration of your 10 days.

A No. They called me on the 31st, they called me out of bed at 6:30 AM and told me to be here for investigation and I was too sick and couldn't make it.

Q Do you have a release from the doctor.

A No, I am still under his care.

I have read the above and it is correct:

Transcript correct:
s/b J. E. O. Burton''

/s/ Wm. B. Russell
W. B. RUSSELL

On August 4, 1945, defendant dismissed plaintiff from its service, assigning as its reason therefor that plaintiff had been absent from his employment for a period of over ten days in violation of Rule 55 (b). Rule 55 (b) for the asserted violation of which plaintiff was so discharged, is as follows:

“Yardmen taking leave of absence for a period of over ten days must secure and fill out Form 153 so the leave will be covered as a matter of record.”

On January 14, 1946, and within a period of six months from the date of discharge, plaintiff filed with defendant written objections to his dismissal, and requested reinstatement. (Exhibit “B”). On January 22, 1946 defendant, through its Superintendent, re-affirmed the dismissal, saying: (Exhibit C)

January 22, 1946

“Mr. J. B. Hudgens, Local Chairman
Switchmen’s Union of North America, Lodge
No. 279
804 - 7th Street
Ogden, Utah

Dear Sir:

Referring to your letter of Jan. 14, 1946 making claim for reinstatement, with pay, favor switchman W. B. Russell who was dismissed from service Aug. 4, 1945 for being absent in excess of 10 days without written leave of absence:

The rules require yardmen to have a written leave to be absent from duty 10 days or more. Russell failed to do this, and it is my position that the action taken in his case is fully justified. Claim is therefore respectfully declined.

Yours truly,

/s/ R. E. Edens”

On February 15, 1946, Mr. C. E. McDaniels, Acting Vice President of Switchmen’s Union of North America, presented to Mr. F. C. Paulsen, Vice President of the defendant company what in effect was a petition for review by Mr. Paulsen of Mr. Edens’ reaffirmance of the dismissal. (Plaintiff’s Exhibit “D”). This was supplemented by a communication from Mr. McDaniels to Mr. Paulsen dated April 1, 1946. (Defendant’s Exhibit 4). On May 14, 1946, Mr. McDaniels further wrote Mr. Paulsen (Defendant’s Exhibit 3), and as the defendant claims much in his brief for this particular communication, we set it out in full.

“Office of Acting Vice President

134 Cleveland Avenue
Salt Lake City 4, Utah

May 14, 1946

Mr. F. C. Paulsen, Vice President
Ogden Union Railway and Depot Co.
10 South Main Street File OUR&D-3

Dear Sir:

Reference is made to our conference, your office, May 7, 1946, in connection with your file 011.221 attached to our grievance, reading:

‘Claim for reinstatement, with seniority rights unimpaired, and compensation at the applicable rate, August 6, 1945 and each SUBSEQUENT date thereto until restored to service favor switchman W. B. Russell, Ogden Yard, account dismissed from the service August 4, 1945 for his alleged responsibility in connection with unauthorized leave of absence’

in connection with the reinstatement of former switchman W. B. Russell, Ogden, Utah.

As agreed during our conference, further action on the subject matter was to be held in abeyance pending our investigation of undesirable procedure on the part of Mr. Russell resulting in false testimony evidenced during formal investigation of August 3, 1945.

This investigation has been completed and it is without prejudice to our contentions and position as expressed in our letter of February 15, 1946 and without establishing a precedent

as to adjustment of future grievances possessing dissimilar facts and circumstances devolving upon similar allegations as appear in the introduction of the formal investigation of August 3, 1945 we are withdrawing the grievance and the case is closed.

Yours truly,

/s/C. E. McDaniels

C. E. McDaniels, Acting Vice
President, S. U. of N. A.

PS: Note change in address.
Phone 7-7593''

Thereafter this action was commenced whereby plaintiff sought the judgment of the court for reinstatement, and damages for all time lost, predicated such claim upon his contention that his discharge had been wrongful, and upon Section 38 of the collective bargaining agreement, reading, so far as here pertinent, as follows:

“38. Investigations: No yardman will be suspended or dismissed without first having a fair and impartial hearing and his guilt established.

* * * * *

In case dismissal is found to be unjust, yardman shall be reinstated and paid for all time lost * * *.

NOTE—Reinstatement will not be permitted after the expiration of six months from date of dismissal unless agreeable to the management and the general committee, except that a case pending with either the B.R.T. or O.R.C. at the expiration of the six month period, will not be prejudiced. Where the yardman involved has been out of service six months or less it will not

be obligatory to consult the committees representing these classes of employes in considering the case for reinstatement.”

Upon conclusion of the trial, the court made and entered findings of fact, conclusions of law, and its judgment, whereby it determined plaintiff's discharge to have been wrongful, denied plaintiff reinstatement, but awarded him judgment for all time lost.

THE NATURE OF THE CASE ON APPEAL

Inasmuch as the lower court denied to plaintiff his prayer for reinstatement, and plaintiff did not appeal from that ruling, that phase of the case is not before this court. Accordingly, we are at a loss to understand why the question of reinstatement is dealt with so extensively by defendant in its brief.

Actually the only questions here involved are

- (1) Did the lower court commit reversible error in its rulings on evidentiary matters;
- (2) Did it commit reversible error in denying defendant's motion for non-suit;
- (3) Was it correct in concluding that under the facts plaintiff's discharge was wrongful;
- (4) Did it apply the correct rule in its determination of the dollar amount of recovery to which plaintiff was entitled for his wrongful discharge.

Defendant contends that the lower court was wrong on each of the matters, and that we, as plaintiff's counsel, pawned off on the lower court a “bill of goods”. We naturally resent the implication thus embodied in

the defendant's characterization of our efforts on behalf of the plaintiff, and submit that it is wholly unjustified. Every proposition urged by us in the lower court was and is supported by law, and that the lower court's acceptance of our position was correct under the law we shall now demonstrate. In so doing we shall answer defendant's contentions point by point, and in the order presented in defendant's brief.

POINT I

THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT ERR IN ADMITTING THE TRANSCRIPT OF THE PROCEEDING AT THE OFFICIAL INVESTIGATION AS SUBSTANTIVE EVIDENCE OF THE FACTS THEREIN STATED.

At the outset it may be advisable to make some comment with respect to the decisions of the Supreme Court of the United States relative to the jurisdiction of state courts to hear and decide actions such as this. The first is *Moore v. Illinois Central Railway Co.*, 312 U. S. 630, 85 L. Ed. 1089, 61 S. Ct. 754. In this case it was categorically held that a state court had jurisdiction to determine an action for damages by an individual against a railroad for breach of a collective bargaining agreement.

The Moore case was followed by *Slocum v. Delaware, Lackawanna & Western Railroad*, 338 U. S. 229, 94 L. ed. 535, 70 S. Ct. 577; *Order of Railway Conductors v. Southern Railway Co.*, 339 U. S. 255, 94 L. ed. 542, 70 S. Ct. 585; and *Order of Railway Conductors v. Pitney*, 326 U. S. 561, 90 L. ed. 318, 66 S. Ct. 322. These cases differed from the Moore case in that whereas in

the Moore case an individual was suing for breach of the agreement, in the other three cases the actions were between the unions and the carriers seeking judicial interpretations of collective bargaining agreements. In the Slocum and Southern Railway cases, actions were brought for declaratory judgments interpreting the agreements; the Pitney case was a jurisdictional dispute involving the railroad and two unions. The Supreme Court in each case held that interpretations of collective bargaining agreements of the character there sought lay with the Adjustment Board under the Railway Labor Act, and not with the courts, but in so holding it did not disturb its decision in the Moore case to the effect that an *individual* might seek recourse in the courts for personal redress for breach by a carrier of a collective bargaining agreement. In fact the Moore case was specifically reaffirmed. In this connection the Supreme Court in the Slocum case said:

“Our holding here is not inconsistent with our holding in *Moore v. Illinois Cent. R. Co.*, 312 U. S. 630, 83 L. Ed. 1089, 61 S. Ct. 754. Moore was discharged by the railroad. He could have challenged the validity of his discharge before the Board, seeking reinstatement and back pay. Instead, he chose to accept the railroad’s action in discharging him as final, thereby ceasing to be an employee, and brought suit claiming damages for breach of contract. As we there held, the Railway Labor Act does not bar courts from adjudicating such cases. A common-law or statutory action for wrongful discharge differs from any remedy which the Board has power to provide, and does not involve questions of future relations between the railroad and its other employees. If a court in handling such a case must

consider some provision of a collective-bargaining agreement, its interpretation would of course have no binding effect on future interpretations by the Board.”

Personally, we do not believe there is any disagreement between counsel for defendant and ourselves on this point, although we do conceive a disagreement as to the jurisdiction of a state court in the matter of reinstatement, and, it is perhaps well to pinpoint our views on that matter as it may have some bearing on the question of the measure of recovery, although the question of reinstatement itself is not before this court.

We understand it to be counsel’s position that while a state court has jurisdiction to entertain an individual’s suit for damages for breach of a collective bargaining agreement, it has no jurisdiction to order reinstatement, and counsel derives its comfort for this position from the decisions of the Supreme Court of the United States, *supra*. We submit, however, that such point was neither involved nor so decided in any of such cases. It was at one time in the Moore case, as an examination of the history of that case discloses, and its disposition is interesting.

Moore first brought an action against the *Yazoo & M. V. R. Co. and Illinois Central Railroad Co.*, 166 So. 395, in connection with his seniority rights, claiming that the carrier had wrongfully assigned him number 57 instead of 37. The Supreme Court of Mississippi dismissed his action, holding that by failing timely to protest his seniority assignment, and accepting work

assignments thereunder, he had waived his right to invoke the aid of the court. The significant part of the decision is that it is predicated upon a waiver of rights and nowhere does the court suggest that in the absence of such waiver it was without power to aid him.

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